
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to request this 
service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 
 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Tuesday, November 22, 2016 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall, First Floor 
100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the November 9, 2016 Meeting 

3. Conditional Use Permit – 1703 Park Avenue  
Public hearing, review and consideration of a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow 
a banquet facility and event space in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the 
property located at 1703 Park Avenue  

4. Zoning Map Amendment – 631, 640, 654 and 657 Bluff Street 
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment from R-1B, Single 
Family Residential District, to C-1, Office District, for the properties located at 631, 640, 654 
and 657 Bluff Street  

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

6. Adjournment 

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Ashley Rosenbaum in the Community 
Development Department at 364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

 

Notice Mailed:  November 18, 2016 Approved: Julie Christensen, Community 
Development Director 



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, November 9, 2016 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall, First Floor 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:00pm. Commissioners Tinder, 
Finnegan, Ruster, Faragher, Haynes, and Councilor Leavy were present. Commissioner 
Johnson was excused. Commissioner Weeden arrived at 7:02pm.  

2. Approval of the Minutes of the October 5, 2016 Meeting 
Commissioner Finnegan moved to approve the minutes from the October 5, 2016 meeting. 
Commissioner Ruster seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  

3. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – 6045 East Buss Road 
Review and consideration of a one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
6045 East Buss Road in the Town of Turtle. 

Ms. Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  A revised Resolution was presented for approval.  She indicated that the 
applicant had requested that the date for recording of the Certified Survey Map be 
removed from the Resolution due to the fact that the Certified Survey Map would not be 
reviewed by the other approving entities until December.    

Commissioner Tinder moved to approve the resolution as amended. Commissioner 
Finnegan seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.   

4. Final Plat – Eagles Ridge Plat No. 2 - New Leaf Homes – 1710 and 1725 Raven Court 
Review and consideration of a 6-lot Final Plat for the properties located at 1710 and 1725 
Raven Court in the City of Beloit 

Ms. Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 

Ms. Christensen suggested a condition be added to the motion that requires the approval 
of the Development Agreement before recording the Final Plat.  

Commissioner Haynes moved to approve the Final Plat with the amendment proposed by 
staff. Commissioner Tinder seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.   



Page 2 of 2 

 

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
The Comprehensive Plan Amendment for the 600 block of Bluff Street was approved by 
City Council. Planning staff will move forward with rezoning the property.  

6. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:10pm.  

 

Minutes respectfully submitted by Ashley Rosenbaum 

 



November 22 Staff Report 3, CU-2016-07, 1703 Park Avenue 

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: November 22, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CU-2016-07 

Applicant: Mario Mendoza 
 

Owner: Mario Mendoza Location: 1703 Park Avenue 

Existing Zoning: C-2, Neighborhood 
Commercial District 

Existing Land Use: Duplex Parcel Size: 0.2 Acre 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Mario Mendoza has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an indoor entertainment-oriented venue in a 
C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for a proposed banquet hall/event space within the building located at 1703 Park 
Avenue. The proposed use is classified as “Entertainment-Oriented Retail Sales/Service,” which requires a Conditional 
Use Permit to operate in a C-2 District. If the Conditional Use Permit is approved, the City Council is authorized to impose 
conditions it deems necessary to reduce or minimize any potential adverse effects on surrounding properties. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 As shown on the attached map, the subject property is located at the NE corner of the intersection of Park 
Avenue and Summit Avenue. There are residential uses to the north, east, and south of the subject property. 
There is a bank to the west of the subject property, located on the opposite side of Park Avenue. 

 The subject building is the former Gearhart’s TV repair business, which includes vacant commercial space and 
two dwelling units. The building has 2,720 square feet of floor area. There are approximately 10 unstriped parking 
stalls on the subject property, which are accessible from Summit Avenue. 

 If approved, the applicant intends to make the first floor of the subject building available for private parties, 
receptions, etc. The applicant does not intend to sell any alcoholic beverages, and requested permission to allow 
his customers to bring their own beverages. This practice is unlawful and will not be allowed, as detailed below. 

 A copy of the application and a sketch of the floor layout provided by the applicant are attached to this report. 
 The attached Public Notice was published in the newspaper, mailed to neighboring property owners, and posted 

on the City’s website. Planning staff has been contacted by five neighboring property owners who are opposed to 
the proposed use due to concerns about traffic, parking, noise, and loitering. 

 The City Engineer has reviewed this request and expressed concern regarding the lack of off-street parking, 
which would cause customers to park on-street in the adjacent residential neighborhood. 

 According to Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, at least one parking stall per 150 square feet of floor area is 
required, and if approved, the applicant would be required to meet this requirement on site or via agreement. 

 Findings of Fact 
Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based 
on the following considerations: 

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 

 The proposed indoor entertainment-oriented venue would likely draw large groups of people 
to special events at various times of the day. Given that the subject property is surrounded by 
residential uses on three sides, the noise, light, and overall increase in commercial activity 
within or immediately adjacent to a single-family neighborhood would be problematic, and 
may be detrimental to public comfort and welfare. 

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted; 

 The proposed indoor entertainment-oriented venue is likely to increase both vehicle and 
pedestrian traffic and to generate noise and light that would be detrimental to the use and 
enjoyment of surrounding residential dwellings. The neighborhood is opposed to the 
proposed use due to concerns about parking, noise, and loitering in their neighborhood. 

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood of the subject property; 

 The impacts of the proposed indoor entertainment-oriented venue may negatively impact 
property values within the adjacent neighborhood. 

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development 
and improvement of the surrounding property; 

 The surrounding area is fully developed. 



November 22 Staff Report 3, CU-2016-07, 1703 Park Avenue 

e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar 
or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that 
it will cause a depreciation in property values; 

 The applicant has not proposed a change in exterior design or site layout. 
f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to 

serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use; 

 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the conditional use. 
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and  

 There is inadequate off-street parking on the subject property and restricted parking on Park 
Avenue, which would force customers to encroach into the adjacent residential 
neighborhood. The neighborhood is opposed to this request due to concerns about this 
potential impact. 

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 The applicant indicated his intent to allow customers to bring their own alcoholic beverages 
for on-site consumption. The City Clerk has advised that state law classifies the subject 
property as a public space, and therefore a liquor license would be necessary for any on-site 
consumption. This prohibition of alcohol consumption during special events and parties would 
be very difficult to monitor and police, which would increase the likelihood of zoning and 
liquor law violations occurring on the subject property. 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Neighborhood Commercial uses for the subject property. The underlying zoning 
district classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section 66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes. 
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 
 

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact 
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines) 
 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends denial of a Conditional Use Permit to allow an indoor 
entertainment-oriented venue in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for a proposed banquet hall/event space within 
the building located at 1703 Park Avenue, based on the above Findings of Fact. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location Map, Photos, Application, Floor Plan, Public Notice, & Mailing List. 
 



November 22 Staff Report 3, CU-2016-07, 1703 Park Avenue 



November 22 Staff Report 3, CU-2016-07, 1703 Park Avenue 

 
 

 



November 22 Staff Report 3, CU-2016-07, 1703 Park Avenue 



November 22 Staff Report 3, CU-2016-07, 1703 Park Avenue 



November 22 Staff Report 3, CU-2016-07, 1703 Park Avenue  

 



November 22 Staff Report 3, CU-2016-07, 1703 Park Avenue  

 



November 22 Staff Report 3, CU-2016-07, 1703 Park Avenue  

 



November 22 Staff Report 4, ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street     

 

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: November 22, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: 4 File Number: ZMA-2016-04 

Applicant: Planning Staff 
 

Owner: Various 
 

Location: 631, 640, 654, & 657 Bluff 
Street 
 

Current Zoning: R-1B, Single-Family 
Proposed Zoning: C-1, Office District 

Existing Land Use: Various  

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Planning staff has initiated an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-
1B, Single-Family Residential District to C-1, Office District, for the properties located at 631, 640, 654, & 657 Bluff Street. 
 
The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning 
Map Amendment when the specific site and context are suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 
  
Key Issues: 

 The subject properties are currently zoned for Single-Family Residential uses, and have come to the attention of 
Planning staff primarily due to the long-term vacancy and deteriorating conditions at the historic apartment 
building located at 640 Bluff Street. 

 The City Council recently approved an amendment to the Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan to recommend Office uses for the subject properties. 

 The intent of the proposed amendment is to create a zoning classification that will allow the future rehab and 
occupancy of the historic, vacant apartment building at 640 Bluff Street as a conditional use in an office district. 
Since this 11-unit apartment building has been vacant for more than a year, it has technically lost its 
nonconforming status and must conform to the single-family zoning. For obvious reasons, this is both unlikely and 
unrealistic, and maintaining the existing R-1B zoning would be a major barrier to the future rehab and re-
occupancy of the historic apartment building at 640 Bluff Street. The building located at 640 Bluff Street is a 
contributing structure in the Bluff Street Historic District, constructed around 1907 and notable for its architecture. 
It has been vacant since being posted Unfit for Human Habitation in May 2015, and is in the midst of a foreclosure 
action with a default judgment entered on July 15, 2016. The property was sold at Rock County Sheriff’s Sale on 
October 20, 2016, but the City has not received a deed showing an ownership change. 

 In addition, the proposed amendment will make the other uses (senior center, medical office, & church) more 
conforming to the adopted Land Use Map (and Zoning Map), thereby supporting their continued operation and 
future expansion. The following table describes the status of the subject properties: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties and installed a sign on the 

property. Planning staff has spoken with the affected stakeholders, including the Director of Grinnell Senior 
Center, the Church Pastor, and the Chiropractor at 654 Bluff Street. All three stakeholders support Planning 
staff’s proposal and are concerned about the long-term vacancy and deterioration at 640 Bluff Street. 

 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a 
recommendation based on the following considerations: 

a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property; 

 An Office zoning district classification was selected because it provides the greatest fit with 
the existing senior center, medical office, & church while creating a potential path for buyers 
of the apartment building at 640 Bluff Street. Multifamily residential uses are a conditional use 
in the Office District; therefore future buyers of 640 Bluff Street will need a Conditional Use 
Permit before occupancy and will be required to satisfy certain conditions of approval to 
address neighborhood and operational concerns. 

Address Land Use Status in Single-Fam District Status in Office District 

640 Bluff Street Apartments Prohibited Conditional 

654 Bluff Street Medical Office Legal Nonconforming Permitted By-Right 

631 Bluff Street Senior Center Legal Nonconforming Conditional 

657 Bluff Street Church Conditional Permitted By-Right 



November 22 Staff Report 4, ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street     

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property; 

 The subject properties are located immediately north of the West Grand Avenue corridor, 
which is zoned C-1, Office District. As shown on the attached maps, the proposed rezoning 
from Single-Family Residential to Office is a logical northern extension of an existing Office 
District that will achieve historic preservation and community development goals. 

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification; 
and 

 The subject properties are not suitable for single-family uses. 

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property. 

 There has been very little development pressure in the general area of the subject property 
during the past decade, and a net loss in dwelling units due to demolition. The goal of this 
action is to stimulate the rehabilitation and re-occupancy of the 640 Bluff Street building. 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (#10) recommends a zoning district classification of C-1 for the subject 
properties. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 
 

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact 
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines) 
 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division 
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-1B, Single-Family 
Residential District to C-1, Office District, for the properties located at 631, 640, 654, & 657 Bluff Street. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Zoning Maps, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List. 
 



November 22 Staff Report 4, ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street 

Existing Zoning Map:  R-1B in Yellow, C-1 Office in Orange 

 
 



November 22 Staff Report 4, ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street 

Proposed Zoning Map:  R-1B in Yellow, C-1 Office in Orange 

 



November 22 Staff Report 4, ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street  

 

 
 



November 22 Staff Report 4, ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street  

 

 



November 22 Staff Report 4, ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street 

 



November 22 Staff Report 4, ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street 

 



November 22 Staff Report 4, ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street 

 



November 22 Staff Report 4, ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street 

 

 
 


